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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website
(www.hkgem.com) for at least 7 days from its date of posting and on the designated website of this Company at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinatrustful/.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Auditors
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

Principal Banker
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Bank of Communications

Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11 Bermuda

Headquarter and Place of Business
For the year ended 31 December 2020:

Flat C8, 12/F., Por Mee Factory Building,

500 Castle Peak Road,

Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Current:

Unit 1603, 16th Floor, The Phoenix,
No. 23 Luard Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road Pembroke

HM 08, Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and

Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Stock Code
8265

Company Website and Investor Relations
www.irasia.com./listco/hk/chinatrustful/
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http://www.china-trustful.com

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of China Trustful
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The revenue of the Group from our operations for the year ended
31 December 2020 decreased by 100% to approximately HK$nil
when compared with that of the last year (2019: HK$118,039,000)
as the sales of goods decreased totally under the effect of the de-
consolidation.

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately HKS$nil representing a decrease of 100%
as compared with last year (2019: HK$12,729,000). The Group
recorded loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$600,602,000 (2019: loss HK$104,589,000).

Despite the aforesaid of the de-consolidation, the Board is
determined to continue to engage in the Electric Vehicle Business.
The Company considers that the prospects of electric vehicles in
the PRC is promising in view of favourable government policies
and growing market demands. The Group will focus on the supply
chains in the production of electric vehicles including but not limited
to manufacturing and supply of electric vehicle components and
parts.

In view of the global market uncertainties, the Group will closely
monitor the international and domestic market situations and
remain cautious on our portfolio management. At the same time,
our management team will continue to work hard to create the
best value to our shareholder via delivering products that exceed
customers’ expectation, while enhancing efficiency and focusing on
sustainable growth.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincerest

gratitude to our shareholders, board of directors, employees and
business partners for their outstanding performance.

Luo Huangshi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 May 2021
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Business Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2020, China Trustful Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”), subsidiaries of the research and
development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries,
electric vehicles and related products and provision of related
services (the “Electric Vehicle Business”) and provision of
marketing and management services, sales and distribution of
energy and petrochemical related products, including but not
limited to, LNG and LPG products, and licensing of petroleum
gas stations (the “Energy and Petrochemical Business”) have
been de-consolidated. More information is set out below under the
heading of de-consolidation of subsidairies.

Business Review

In relation to the Electric Vehicle Business and Energy and
Petrochemical Business, during the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group recorded revenue of HKS$nil, representing a
100% decrease as compared with the same period in 2019 (31
December 2019: HK$118,039,000) and gross profit and gross
profit margin of HK$nil and 0% respectively (31 December 2019:
HK$12,729,000 and 10.8% respectively). Combining with other
income and expenses, the Group recorded loss for the year ended
31 December 2020 of HK$600,602,000 (31 December 2019: loss
of HK$104,589,000) and other comprehensive income of HK$nil
(31 December 2019: income of HK$1,202,000), being exchange
differences arising from translating foreign operations during the
year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company from operations
was HK$600,602,000 as compared with a loss of HK$104,377,000
for the same period last year; whereas basic loss per share was
HKnil cents (31 December 2019: loss of HK3.81 cents).
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The Group’s selling and distribution costs and administrative
expenses, in total, decreased from HK$38,433,000 for the same
period last year to HK$8,831,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has recorded
other expenses of HK$591,130,000 in relation to De-Consolidation.
More information is set out in the section of below.

In general, the Group’s result during the year ended 31 December
2020 has been decreased and our business were affected by the
De-Consolidation. Further description of the business performances
from our businesses are described below.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
segment revenue of HK$nil (31 December 2019: HK$39,784,000) in
the Electric Vehicle Business, representing 0% of the Group’s total
revenue generated from operations (31 December 2019: 33.7%).
This segment recorded segment profit of HK$nil (31 December
2019: HK$4,918,000), and segment margin of 0% (31 December
2019: 12.4%)).
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Despite the aforesaid of the De-Consolidation set out below, the
Group will continue to engage in the vehicle business by focusing
on providing customized one stop solutions to customers for the
supply of vehicle accessories in China. The major products initially
will include smart watch car key, intelligent air purifier and sanitizer
(effective against COVID-19) and intelligent mobile multimedia
system. The Group has an experienced team of technical staffs
providing design, integration and modification services according to
customers’ requirements. The Group aims to provide a selection of
customized products to suit customers’ needs based on self-design
products as well as similar products available in the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Energy and Petrochemical
Business recorded a revenue of HK$nil, representing 0% of the
Group’s total revenue (31 December 2019: HK$78,255,000).

For the Silverware Business, all the assets, including but not limited
to the books and accounting records, vouchers, computers, company
stamps, relevant stocks, etc., of two subsidiaries of the Group
in the PRC, namely #NT@IBESBLEFRARE (for identification
purpose, Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious Metal Operation Company
Limited (“Zhejiang Tong Yin”) and fNEEREEEGR AR (for
identification purpose, Hangzhou Yin Xin Investment Management
Company Limited) (the “Records and Documents”) were seized
by the Ministry of Public Security of the PRC as the Records and
Documents were kept and stored in a shared office with one of the
resigned executive director, Mr. Zhang Genjiang, who holds 49%
equity interest of Zhejiang Tong Yin and was arrested during the
course of seizure of other businesses of Mr. Zhang Genjiang (the
“Special Circumstance”). The Company has not received any
official documentation from the Ministry of Public Security of the
PRC nor any relevant departments from the PRC government and
the Special Circumstance was merely notified to the Company in
January 2020 by relevant staff of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.
The Company has checked relevant information from the Bureau of
Industry and Commerce of the PRC and other unofficial company
search engine to verify the Special Circumstance and no information
could be founded except the equity of Zhejiang Tong Yin was frozen
in January 2020.
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The Company has obtained an investigation report from a PRC lawyer
in which the PRC lawyer advised that there is no way to recover
the seized records and documents at this moment as it is under
the criminal investigation by the Public Security. According to the
announcements published by the Public Security, Mr. Zhang Genjiang,
a former executive director of the Company and the controller of J#f
T2 2R EE AR AR (Zhejiang Zhixin Holdings Group Co. Ltd.*),
was arrested for suspected illegal absorption of public deposits.
The Public Security has seized various properties, assets, cash
and other things related to the suspects. The PRC lawyer advised
that according to PRC laws, the Group’s subsidiaries operating the
silverware business and those operating the electric vehicle business
were considered as connected with the suspects. The PRC lawyer
further advised that the seized record and documents would only
be dealt with after the relevant criminal investigation or court trial
was closed. Other than the announcements published by the Public
Security, the PRC lawyer was unable to obtain any further information
relating to the investigation by the Public Security.

The Group has loss control on Zhejiang Tong Yin and Hangzhou Yin
Xin Investment Management Company Limited and accounted for
deconsolidated for the year ended 31 December 2019. Therefore, the
Group has recorded other expenses of HK$78,770,000 in relation to
Silverware Business for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on
the books and records maintained by the Group. The Company had
tried to provide all available information to the Auditors. However,
access to such books and records was limited because such books
and records were seized by the Public Security of the PRC since
January 2020 and were lost due to the departure of top management
personnel including relevant directors, legal representatives and
finance manager. The Company tried with many attempts but failed
to contact the same. In view of the above, the Company was unable
to provide sufficient evidence to the Auditors for the audit of these
subsidiaries and, accordingly, the Auditors considered that they
were unable to obtain sufficient evidence and explanations to satisfy
themselves for the financial information of these subsidiaries as
well as for the completeness of the financial information of these
subsidiaries.
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The directors considered that the control over the following
subsidiaries had been lost since January 2020. The results, assets,
liabilities and cash flows of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated
from the consolidated financial statements of the Group since
January 2020 (the “De-Consolidation”). The major subsidiaries were
deconsolidated as follows:

Electric Vehicle Business

() HIMNEXEBTEERAR]
(i) HBMNEEEETERRAT
(i) ANMEFTAEHERBARAR]
(v) IPEEKREZIEFRAA
) EBEEERABEHERBERAR

(vi)  Ecological Green Transportation Limited (Incorporated in United
Kingdom)

(vii) Ecological Green Transportation Limited (Incorporated in Hong
Kong)

Energy and Petrochemical Business
()  China Energy and Chemical Investment Limited

(i)  Hong Kong Trustful Energy and Chemical Limited
(i) Ultimate Growth Investments Limited

(iv) Great Fortune Enterprise Company Limited

(v)  Gulf Energy (China) Limited

Therefore, the Group has recorded other expenses of HK$591,130,000
in relation to De-Consolidation.
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Management’s View on the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The management of the Company has given careful consideration to
the Disclaimer of Opinion and the basis of Disclaimer of Opinion and
has had ongoing discussion with the auditors when preparing the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Regarding disclaimer of opinion nos. 1 to 6 as disclosed in this
financial statement, to the management’s best knowledge and
belief, the management understood that the limitation of scope
was due to such books and records seized by the Ministry of
Public Security of the PRC since January 2020 and lost due to
the departure of top management personnel including relevant
directors, legal representatives and finance manager. Regarding
disclaimer no. 7, the management is processing restructuring plans
relating to its vehicle accessories business to improve its financial
position, to provide liquidity and cashflow. However, the plans were
in process. As such, the Management understood and agreed with
the basis of the disclaimer of opinion.

In order to address the disclaimer of opinion, the management had
used their best endeavours to reacquire the books and records
and financial information of these subsidiaries. However, it fails.
In December 2020, the management concluded that the Group
lost the control of these subsidiaries and deconsolidated these
subsidiaries. As discussed with the auditors, it is expected that
the deconsolidation of the deconsolidated subsidiaries proceeds
and is completed on or prior to 31 December 2021, the disclaimer
of opinion is expected to be removed in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2023, as
the financial information of deconsolidated subsidiaries would
also affect the corresponding figures in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2022 but would not
further affect its consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2023. The management is confident that the
business restructuring plans mentioned as above will be successful
to improve its financial position, to provide liquidity and cashflow.
The disclaimer of opinion no. 7 will be removed for the year ending
31 December 2022.
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Audit Committee’s View on the disclaimer of
Opinion

The auditors requested to perform full audit of subsidiaries as
follows for the years ended 31 December 2020:

(BMEREBREFRAAR, (BMEHEESHTEFRDE,
(iAMEFTEHERBERLIA, (VIABEKEHAEAR
NAEl, WVEEERAEHERBER XA, (vi Ecological Green
Transportation Limited, (vii) Ecological Green Transportation
Limited, (vii) China Energy and Chemical Investment Limited, (ix)
Hong Kong Trustful Energy and Chemical Limited, (x) Ultimate
Growth Investments Limited, (xi) Great Fortune Enterprise Company
Limited, and (xii) Gulf Energy (China) Limited.

The requested information included but was not limited to the
vouchers, invoices, bank statements and bank confirmations
etc. in relation to these subsidiaries. The Company had tried to
provide all available information to the auditors. However, access
to such books and records was limited because such books
and records were seized by the Ministry of Public Security of the
PRC since January 2020 and were lost due to the departure of
top management personnel including relevant directors, legal
representatives and finance manager.

The Company tried with many attempts but failed to contact the
same. In view of the above, the Company was unable to provide
sufficient evidence to the auditors for the audit of these subsidiaries
and, accordingly, the auditors considered that they were unable to
obtain sufficient evidence and explanations to satisfy themselves
for the financial information of these subsidiaries as well as for the
completeness of the financial information of these subsidiaries.

The auditors draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of
HK$600,602,000 and had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of HK$15,713,000 and HK$15,662,000 respectively and material
events mentioned in note 27. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the disclaimer of
opinion and the management’s position concerning the disclaimer
of opinion and had also discussed with the auditors at the planning
stages and closing stages via teleconferences, by which it was
fully aware of the abovementioned background and reasons for the
disclaimer of opinion. The Audit Committee therefore concurred
with the views of the Management and the auditors.

Removal of Disclaimer of Opinion

As discussed with the auditors, it is expected that the deconsolidation
of the deconsolidated subsidiaries proceeds and is completed on
or prior to 31 December 2021, the qualification is expected to be
removed in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2023, as the financial information of
deconsolidated subsidiaries would also affect the corresponding
figures in its consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2022 but would not further affect its consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2023.

Financial Review

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
HK$68,000 (2019: HK$534,956,000) comprising cash and cash
equivalents of HK$nil (2019: HK$938,000), and net current liabilities
of HK$15,713,000 (2019: HK$461,683,000). The Group did not
have any bank borrowings, guarantee and banking facilities, while
the Group’s other borrowings included amounts due to an ex-
director of HK$9,442,000 (2019: HK$7,072,000). As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s equity attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by HK$590,926,000 to deficit HK$15,662,000 (2019:
equity HK$575,264,000), which was mainly due to the effect of the
De-Consolidation.

The Group’s gearing ratio represented its total borrowings over the
equity attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had total borrowings amounted to HK$9,442,000
(2019: HK$7,072,000). The Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 amounted to deficit
HK$15,662,000 (2019: equity HK$575,264,000).
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Having considered that the equity attributable to owners of the
Company was deficit as at 31 December 2020 and the Group’s
current ratio, calculated based on current assets of approximately
HK$680,000 over current liabilities of approximately HK$15,781,000,
it was at a very unhealthy level.

As at 31 December 2020, our trade receivables amounted to
HK$nil, which was a decrease of HK$200,947,000 compared to
HK$200,947,000 as at 31 December 2019, our trade payables as at
31 December 2020 also decreased to HK$nil from HK$28,661,000
as at 31 December 2019. The significant decrease in these
balances was mainly due to the De-Consolidation.

Furthermore, the deposits, prepayments and other receivables of
the Group decreased from HK$292,352,000 as at 31 December
2019 to HK$68,000 as at 31 December 2020.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group amount to HK$nil as
at 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the issued share capital
of the Company has remain unchanged compared to 31 December
2019.

The Board is determined to continue to engage in the Electric
Vehicle Business, and try its best to maintain a prudent approach
in managing its financial requirements. In the long run, the Group
finances its daily operations and future acquisitions from internally
generated cash flows and/or external debt and/or by equity fund
raisings.

There was no outstanding convertible bonds as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.
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There was no outstanding share options as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.

There was no material connected transaction or related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 except the
exempt connected transaction of HK$9,442,000 (2019: connected
transaction of HK$7,072,000).

The effective tax rate for the year was 0% (2019: 1.8%), which was
for the tax rates applicable to the relevant jurisdictions ranging from
0% to 25%.

The Group’s transactions, trade receivables, trade payables and
cash and cash equivalents are mainly denominated in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk. The directors of the
Company have a positive attitude to regularly monitor the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange
rate risk to a minimum level. To a larger extent, foreign exchange
risks were minimised via balancing the foreign currency monetary
assets versus the corresponding currency liabilities, and foreign
currency revenues versus the corresponding currency expenditures.
In light of the above, it was considered that the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risks was not significant and no hedging measure
had been undertaken by the Group.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).
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As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed above, no other assets
of the Group were pledged (2019: nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had material capital
commitments of HK$nil (2019: HK$22,400,000).

The Group did not recommend the payment of any dividend during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil).

There were no significant investment held as at 31 December
2020, and there were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Total staff costs for the year, including directors’ remuneration, was
HK$2,757,000 (2019: HK$8,558,000). The Group’s remuneration
practices are in line with the prevailing market practice and
are determined on the basis of performance, qualification and
experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including
salaries, allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, share option
scheme and training for human resources upskilling.

There was no fund raising activity for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations
or growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
risk factors that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects are identified
as below, while there may be other risks and uncertainties in
addition to those identified below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

As the growth of traditional automobile market worldwide is
expected to slow down, more and more automobile manufacturers
enter into electric vehicle industry. Market risk arises from the
intensifying competitions of the Electric Vehicle Business of the
Group.

With an aim to become one of the market leaders, not only have
we engaged qualified managerial, operational and marketing team
to deal with the Electric Vehicle Business, in order to minimise
the market risk, the Group also builds our competitive edge in the
Electric Vehicle Business by being customer-oriented and provision
of tailor-made solutions to our customers.

The Group is exposed to regulatory risks, especially in the Electric
Vehicle Business, in relation to failure to comply with relevant laws
and regulations in financial, operational and environment aspects.
While there is no non-compliance of laws and regulations during
the year, the Group will remain sensitive to any changes in the
regulations, and respond to any changes to ensure our businesses
comply with the relevant policies.

Details of the financial risks are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s currency exposure mainly arises from its businesses
in the PRC, further details of which are set out in the paragraph
“Foreign Currency Management” under the section headed
“Financial Review” above.
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In 2020, the national and global economic environments was
unstable and complicated mainly due to the COVID-19.

Looking forward, the Group would continue to provide quality
services and to expand customer base into the industries it already
set foot in. In case of adverse market condition, we will pay close
attention to the market changes of the industries involved and
adjust our business strategies in a timely manner to avoid visible
risks. The Group will take risk management and risk investigation
as its paramount concerns, and improve its asset management and
team management abilities while enhancing the comprehensive
strength of the Group.

Prospect

Despite the aforesaid and the result of De-Consolidation, the
Board is determined to continue to engage in the Electric Vehicle
Business. The Company considers that the prospects of electric
vehicles in the PRC is promising in view of favourable government
policies and growing market demands. The Group will focus on
providing customized one stop solutions to customers for the
supply of vehicle accessories and parts in China.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2020. This report highlights the key corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public
accountability and corporate governance are beneficial for the
healthy growth of the Group, improving customer and supplier
confidence and safeguarding the interests of shareholders of the
Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors and

Relevant Employees

The Company adopted the model code for securities transactions
by the directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for the
year.
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Board of Directors

The current Board is currently composed of five directors, two
being executive directors and three being independent non-
executive directors as set out below.

Mr. Luo Huangshi, Chairman
Mr. Tao Wah Wai Calvin

Mr. Hu Chao
Mr. Wong Lok Man
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey

The Board is responsible for the overall management and affairs
of the Company and to maximise returns for shareholders. The
day-to-day operations and management of the Company are
delegated to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the section
“Biographies of Directors” of this annual report.

Disclosure of Changes in Information of Director
Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, changes in
directors’ information since the date of the Annual Report 2019 is
set out below:

1. Mr. Wong Kin Fai was appointed as executive director on 21
June 2019 and resigned on 20 January 2020.

2. Mr. Lai Wing Kwan was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 8 November 2019 and resigned on 17
July 2020.

3.  Mr. Law Yiu Sang, Jacky was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 17 January 2020 and resigned on 13
March 2020.

4, Mr. Man Wai Lun was appointed as independent non-

executive director on 5 February 2020 and resigned on 9
November 2020.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

Mr. Lo Wing Sang was appointed as executive director on 20
May 2020 and resigned on 30 July 2020.

Mr. Wong Ching Fai, William was appointed as executive
director on 3 June 2020 and resigned on 5 November 2020.

Mr. Law Yui Lun was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 17 July 2020 and resigned on 30 September 2020.
Mr. Luo Huangshi was appointed as executive director on 2

December 2020.

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy resigned as independent non-executive
director on 4 December 2020.

Mr. Fei Jie resigned as executive director on 8 December
2020.

Mr. Tao Wah Wai Calvin was appointed as executive director
on 23 December 2020.

Mr. Hu Chao was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 23 December 2020.

Mr. Wong Lok Man was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 31 December 2020.

Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 31 December 2020.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Luo Huangshi is the chairman and is responsible for leading
the Board in the overall strategic management and business
development of the Group.

With effect from 8 December 2020, Mr. Fei Jie resigned as
executive director, chairman and other positions in the Group. The
position of Chairman is currently held by Mr. Luo Huangshi.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive directors representing
more than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The functions of independent non-executive directors are primarily
to bring an independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts at board meetings.

Current independent non-executive directors have made an annual
confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all independent non-
executive directors were independent.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the directors, including independent non-executive directors,
are appointed for terms of one year. All the directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, (i) any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii)
at each annual general meeting, not less than one-third of the
directors then in office shall retire and every director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Relationships and Association among the
Directors

There was no relationships between members of the Board,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the directors, so as to ensure
that they had appropriate understanding of the Group’s businesses
and of their duties and responsibilities under the GEM Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The directors are continually updated on the latest development
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.
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Board Diversity Policy

Recognising the benefits of having a diversified Board, the
Company adopts a board diversity policy and aims to achieve
diversity in the Board in order to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development for the businesses of the Group. Selection
of candidates for the members of the Board are made through the
consideration of a different aspects including age, gender, cultural
and ethnic background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge
and length of services. Besides the above aspects, the Nomination
Committee will consider whether the Board composition, as a
whole, has sufficient diverse expertise particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and human
resources management. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Board Meetings Held and Attendance

The CG Code requires regular meeting of the Board be held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such
Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or by telephone conference. Under code provision A.1.3 of the
CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular
board meeting to all directors to give all directors an opportunity
to attend. Certain regular Board meetings were convened with less
than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely
and make expeditious decision making in respect of transactions
which were of significance to the Group’s businesses. As a result,
the Board meetings were held with a shorter notice period than
required with the consent of all the directors for that time being. The
Board will do its best endeavours to meet the requirement of code
provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in future. Adequate and appropriate
information is circulated normally three days in advance of Board
meetings to the directors. In addition to the regular Board meetings,
the Chairman met with independent non-executive directors without
the presence of other executive directors.
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The attendance records of the directors at Board meetings and EEZRAEERITHNEECS S EZLEETE
Board Committee meetings held during the year is set out below: BEEgEMNEFEILHEINT:

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend!

LE/RERLENERRE
Remuneration Audit Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
E3g YMEES ERZEEE REZEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Fei Jie, former chairman (resigned on B4R %4 BT T/E
8 December 2020) (72020512 A8 & {T) 9/9 N/AT i R N/AT i N/AT i R
Mr. Wong kin Fai (resigned on T {8 % 4 (120205
20 January 2020) 1H20ABHE) 0/9 N/AT i N/AT & B N/AT i R
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (resigned on 8k % £ (7202057430
30 July 2020) HE ) 3/9 N/AT i N/AT i N/AZ 8
Mr. Wong Ching Fai, Wiliam (resigned on & B{#8 %& & (120201185
5 November 2020) BE ) 2/9 N/AT i A N/AT & B N/AT i R
Mr. Luo Huangshi (appointed on 58 21 5% 4 (R2020F12 A2
2 December 2020) REZE) 2/9 N/AT 8 N/AT 8 N/AT i R
Mr. Tao Wah Wai, Calvin (appointed on B 2 5 & (12020 12
23 December 2020) PRIZY 3:359) 1/9 N/AT 8 N/AT i N/AT iE R
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy (resigned on B0 5 A (20205
4 December 2020) 12A488 1) 9/9 6/8 0/1 6/8
Mr. Lai Wing Kwan (resigned on 1B &R IR % A (20205 7 A17
17 July 2020) BEHE) 2/9 4/8 0/ 4/8
Mr. Man Wai Lun (resigned on SR B 5% A (72020511 A9
9 November 2020) HE ) 6/9 3/8 0/0 3/8
Mr. Law Yui Lun (resigned on BEB %4 (R2020F9A30
30 September 2020) HE ) 1/9 0/8 0/0 0/8
Mr. Law Yiu Sang, Jacky (resigned on VR £ 4 (Fh202063A13
13 March 2020) BEHE) 1/9 1/8 0/0 1/8
Mr. Hu Chao (appointed on T % & (12020512 723
23 December 2020) HEZE) 1/9 1/8 0/1 1/8
Mr. Wong Lok Man (appointed on TFER & (20205124
31 December 2020) JIIBEZ) 0/9 0/8 0/1 0/8
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey (appointed on B &7 % & (12020412 A
31 December 2020) JIREZ) 0/9 0/8 0N 0/8
1 Number of meetings held during the year or during the tenure of the directors/ 1 RARGEEES EFZEGRENEAFEN

FHANMAZAEENAFERREATHELE
R/ESZEERB)BINSHAR

Board Committee members for the year (if such director was appointed or
ceased to be a director/Board Committee member part way during the year)
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General Meetings Held and Attendance ERITHRR ARG REFEFBR
The attendance records of the directors at general meetings held BEERAFEERITHRE XS WL E LR
during the Year is set out below: ERlIp NS

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend!

HE/CEREENGRRE
Annual General Special General
Meeting Meeting

BRBFAE BRREHAE

Executive Directors BITES

*Mr. Fei Jie, former chairman EANEE RIAEERE 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Kin Fai, former director TREBLE RITES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Lo Wing Sang, former director BxERE RIFEES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Ching Fai, William, former director = B8 5t 4 © Ai{fE = 0/0 0/0
Mr. Luo Huangshi Hetis 0/0 0/0
Mr. Tao Wah Wai, Calvin PR e 0/0 0/0

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTEE(BIFHITEE)

(“INED”)
Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy, former INED BT E  BIBUIERNTES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Lai Wing Kwan, former INED FEERIERE  RIBUIENTES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Man Wai Lun, former INED XEBEE BBUFNTES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Law Yui Lun, former INED BEBLE ABUERNTES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Law Yiu Sang, former INED BRELEE RBUERTES 0/0 0/0
Mr. Hu Chao HA R 5 A& 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Lok Man FTHRREE 0/0 0/0
Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey EEREE 0/0 0/0

1 Number of meetings held during the year or during the tenure of the directors 1 RAFEXREERAFENTHRNHEZESTR
(if such director was appointed or ceased to be a director part way during the AFEEEZARTHEAER) BTN RAALK
year)
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprised
all independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hu Chao, Mr.
Wong Lok Man and Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey. Mr. Hu Chao is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the directors
and senior management remuneration, making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual director
and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration. Specific terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of the
Company and the Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held meetings during the year to
review the remuneration package of the directors.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee comprised all
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hu Chao, Mr.
Wong Lok Man and Mr. Lo Check Fei, Jeffrey. Mr. Wong Lok Man
is the chairman of the Audit Committee, who has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience as required by the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are published on the websites of the Company and the Exchange.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) monitoring and ensuring a proper relationship with the
Company’s auditors;

(b) reviewing the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual reports
and compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing
Rules, and legal requirements before submission to the Board;
and

(c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee held meetings during the year, to review the
Group’s quarterly and interim financial statements.

The current independent non-executive directors of the Board of
the Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, to review the
annual audit plan of the external auditors, to meet and discuss
with the external auditors about audit findings, and to discuss
with the Board about re-appointment of the external auditor and
recommended to the Board the approval and announcement of
such financial information on 12 May 2021.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee comprised
all independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hu Chao, Mr.
Wong Lok Man and Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey. Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei,
Jeffrey is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the size, structure
and composition of the Board, identify suitably qualified individual
for appointment to the Board, assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the directors
and succession planning for the directors. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible for ensuring the Board comprises
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the Company’s healthy
development. The Nomination Committee considered that the
Board has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and human
resources management, for the Company’s businesses, while
gender diversity is not directly relevant to the quality of the Board.
Specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
published on the websites of the Company and the Exchange.

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider
a variety of factors including without limitation the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

a.  Reputation for integrity.

b.  Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

c.  Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments.

d. Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

e. Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee may
consider other factors so to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person, as it
considers appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held meeting during the year to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, the independence
of the independent non-executive directors and the suitability of the
directors proposed for re-appointment at the Company’s annual
general meeting, and make recommendations to the Board for the
directors newly appointed during the year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(@ developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
management of the Group;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the codes of conduct,
where applicable, to employees and the directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this report.
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Company Secretary
Mr. Lo Wing Sang was appointed as company secretary on 20 May
2020 and resigned on 30 July 2020.

Ms. Li Lai Nar was appointed as company secretary on 21
September 2020 and resigned on 31 December 2020.

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung was appointed as company secretary on
31 December 2020.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2020, fees for audit and non-
audit services paid/payable to ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited,
the auditors of the Company, amounted to HK$600,000 and
HK$90,000 respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s risk management process includes risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk management and risk control and review. The
Group’s risk management framework sets out the risk management
process as described below:

(@ The head of each businesses and functions of the Group,
including areas covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management functions, is entrusted with duties
in identifying, evaluating and managing risks within its own
division regularly. Mitigation plans are implemented to manage
the risks after taking into account the objectives of each
businesses.

(b) The senior management is responsible for overseeing the
risk management and internal control activities of the Group
through regular meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly addressed and any material internal control
defects are properly identified and well addressed.
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() The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
through regular meetings with the senior management. In
addition, the Audit Committee, taking into consideration of the
advices and opinions from the external professional internal
control consultant, is responsible for ensuring the sufficiency
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through regular inspection and monitoring.

The systems are implemented to minimise the risk to which the
Group is exposed and is used as a management tool for the day-to-
day operation of business. The system can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function during the
review period. The Board has implemented an internal audit
function to review the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Company subsequent to the review period.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the
Handling and Dissemination of Inside

Information

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.
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Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view. The responsibility of auditors in respect of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are set out in the independent
auditors’ report forming part of this annual report.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The directors are
aware that the net liabilities, loss and operating cash outflow for
the year ended 31 December 2020, and the deconsolidation of the
subsidiaries mentioned, which indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern as referred to C.1.3 of the CG Code.
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Communications with Shareholders and

Investor Relations

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy to
maintain an on-going dialogue with its shareholders and investors
in a timely, open and transparent manner. The Board reviews
the policy on a regular basis to ensure effective communication
between the Company, its shareholders and investors.

The Board communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels. The Board meets and communicates with
shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other
general meetings. Corporate communications (such as quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements)
are sent to shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the
websites of the Company and the Exchange.

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, a shareholder
of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at an annual general meeting of the
Company may propose a person for election as a director at such
meeting by lodging a notice in writing signed by such shareholder
of his intention to propose such person for election and a notice in
writing signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected at the head office of the Company or the office of the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notices are given,
shall be at least seven days and that (if the notices are submitted
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election) the period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such meeting.
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Other than election at annual general meeting, pursuant to Bye-
law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
including election of directors, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Shareholders can put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall
be in writing and sent by post to the headquarter and place of
business of the Company at Unit 1603, 16/F., The Phoenix, No. 23
Luard Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Huangshi (“Mr. Luo”), aged 49, was appointed as an
executive Director on 2 December 2020 and appointed as the
Chairman of the Board on 9 February 2021. He is the founder and
chairman of B ® 4t 3 X E F & B R A A (Guangdong Beidou
Tianyun Technology Co. Ltd.*). Prior to that, Mr. Luo has been
engaged in the knitting and embroidery industry in China for over
13 years.

Mr. Tao, aged 29, obtained his Master of Business Administration
from Southwestern University in 2018, is currently the Director of
Premium Bright Corporate Advisory Limited. Mr. Tao has extensive
knowledge in corporate finance transactions in Hong Kong. He is
well experienced for working in mergers & acquisition, analysing
financial and market data, responsible for coordinating and
supporting integration planning for acquisitions, and taking deals
through the full process to successful completion.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hu Chao (“Mr. Hu”) was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Hu, aged 37, he obtained
a Bachelor Degree in Law from Hunan University of Technology
(formerly known as Zhuzhou Institute of Technology). Mr. Hu has
extensive experience in legal consultation and had been providing
consultancy services for various businesses in the PRC. Mr. Hu
currently serves as independent non-executive director of GT Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 263), the company listed on the
Main Board. Mr. Hu currently serves as independent non-executive
director of CL Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8098), the
company listed on the GEM Board. Mr. Hu was appointed as
executive director of Farnova Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8153), the company listed on the GEM Board, from 22 July 2016 to
14 December 2020.
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Mr. Wong Lok Man (“Mr. Wong”) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Wong,
aged 38, obtained a Diploma of Business Administration from
Sydney Institute of Business and Technology in 2003 and Bachelor
of Commerce-Accounting from Macquarie University in 2005.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants with over 15 years of accounting and audit experience,
including, among others, as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of L & A International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8195)
from September 2014 to May 2016 and as the group financial
controller, joint company secretary and authorised representative
of Kaisun Holdings Limited (stock code: 8203) since August 2020,
the issued shares of both of which are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Wong was appointed as an independent nonexecutive director
of China Financial International Investments Limited (stock code:
721) which are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange on 18
November 2020.

Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei Jeffrey (“Mr. Lo”) has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo,
aged 27, obtained his Master of Accounting and Finance from
University of Edinburgh in 2016, is currently the Finance Manager
of eLumen LED Lighting Solutions Company Limited. Mr. Lo has
extensive experience in auditing in Hong Kong. He is experienced
in the audit of manufacturing and consumer business industry,
analyzing financial and market data and familiar with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Hong Kong Standard of Auditing.
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The directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 56 to 57 to this annual report.

Dividend

No special dividend was paid during the year (2019: nil). The
directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year (2019: nil).

Business Review

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 5 to this annual report and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 18 to this annual report. These sections
form part of this directors’ report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

With an aim to become a strong market player in the green
transportation and electric vehicle industry, the Group leads
by example by placing strong emphasis on the environmental
impact caused by the Company’s operation and have established
appropriate environmental management systems tailored to the
nature of our businesses. The Group adheres to a green production
process, including handling three wastes from factories and
strictly complying with national and local environmental laws and
regulations. As for our daily office operations, the Group also
encourages controlling energy consumption in terms of employees’
daily behaviors and equipment management.

Further discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and our
relationship with various stakeholders are covered by a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance report which will be available
at the websites of the Company and the Exchange in due course as
soon as possible.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and

Regulations

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group, such as the national and
local environmental laws and regulations, such as the % A R £
M BR 15 1R & 7% (literally translated as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China) and the regulations of
environmental protection of the Zhejiang Province.

For the Silverware Business, all the assets, including but not
limited to the books and accounting records, vouchers, computers,
company stamps, relevant stocks, etc., of two subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC, namely M I BEES B L L HER QA (for
identification purpose, Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious Metal Operation
Company Limited (“Zhejiang Tong Yin”) and fi M $E &% & & 18
BBRAF] (for identification purpose, Hangzhou Yin Xin Investment
Management Company Limited) (the “Records and Documents”)
were seized by the Ministry of Public Security of the PRC as the
Records and Documents were kept and stored in a shared office
with one of the resigned executive director, Mr. Zhang Genjiang,
who holds 49% equity interest of Zhejiang Tong Yin and was
arrested during the course of seizure of other businesses of Mr.
Zhang Genjiang (the “Special Circumstance”). The Company
has not received any official documentation from the Ministry of
Public Security of the PRC nor any relevant departments from
the PRC government and the Special Circumstance was merely
notified to the Company in January 2020 by relevant staff of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The Company has checked relevant
information from the Bureau of Industry and Commerce of the PRC
and other unofficial company search engine to verify the Special
Circumstance and no information could be founded except the
equity of Zhejiang Tong Yin was frozen in January 2020. As such,
the operation of the Group’s silverware business was temporarily
suspended.
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The Company has already appointed PRC lawyer to verify the
seizure situation and follow up with the Special Circumstance
including the possibility for recovering the Records and Documents.
The Company has obtained a preliminary legal opinion report
issued by PRC lawyers in which the PRC lawyer advised that there
is no way to recover the Records and Documents at the moment
as now it is under the criminal investigation and carried out by the
Ministry of Public Security of the PRC. The Company was further
advised that the Record and Documents would be released only in
such criminal investigation case was closed and found innocence
with the criminal investigation.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staffs are reasonably
remunerated and also continues to improve, regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration, benefits, occupational
health and safety. Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group
maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The
Group carries out effective communication with customers, with
an aim to provide better services for the customers. The Group
cooperates with its suppliers to achieve the synergetic effects.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 60 to this annual report and note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company
The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$nil (2019: HK$434,213,000).
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Information about major customers

Revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
are as follows:

FERFER

B P RE £2020%F K2019F12A31H 1IF F
EAKREBRHRBEUW AI0%A E&E BN
—F:

2020 2019
2020 20194
Reporting segments HK$’000 HK$'000
HWED D FHET FET
Customer A (note i) Electric Vehicle Business
BEPA (K70 BEAEEK - 17,600
Note: Hat -
(i) Revenue derived from Customer A did not contribute 10% or more to the (i) B E2020F12A31BILFE - REEFPANKA
Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2020. HAEERKRANERTEBEI0% °
Except as disclosed above, no other customers contributed 10% or K E X EEIN  RMEFEE  HEH

more of the Group’s total revenue for both years.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers.

Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. Luo Huangshi, Chairman (appointed on 2 December 2020)
Mr. Tao Wah Wai, Calvin (appointed on 23 December 2020)
Mr. Fei Jie (resigned on 8 December 2020)
Mr. Wong Kin Fai (appointed on 21 June 2019 and
resigned on 20 January 2020)
Mr. Lo Wing Sang (appointed on 20 May 2020 and
resigned on 30 July 2020)
Mr. Wong Ching Fai, William (appointed on 3 June 2020 and
resigned on 5 November 2020)
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Mr. Hu Chao (appointed on 23 December 2020)

Mr. Wong Lok Man (appointed on 31 December 2020)

Mr. Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey (appointed on 31 December 2020)

Mr. Sit Sai Hung, Billy (resigned on 4 December 2020)

Mr. Shen Ruolei (resigned on 17 January 2020)

Mr. Lai Wing Kwan (appointed on 8 November 2019 and
resigned on 17 July 2020)

Mr. Law Yiu Sang, Jacky (appointed on 17 January 2020 and
resigned on 13 March 2020)

Mr. Man Wai Lun (appointed on 5 February 2020 and
resigned on 9 November 2020)

Mr. Law Yui Lun (appointed on 17 July 2020 and
resigned on 30 September 2020)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, not less than one-
third of the directors then in office shall retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 35 to 36
under the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute by way of (i) cash
or (i) shares as may be determined by the board of directors of
the Company from time to time. The profit distribution policy of the
Company is:

(@) Profit distribution policy of the Company shall achieve
continuity, stability and sustainability;

(b) The Company targets a payout ratio with balance on
distribution of profits and profits retained for business
operation and future development;

(c)  Profit distribution of the Company shall take into account:

() the earnings per share of the Company;

(i)  the reasonable return in investment of the investors and
the shareholders in order to provide incentive to them
to continue to support the Company in their long-term

development;

(i) the financial conditions and business plan of the
Company; and

(iv)  the market sentiment and circumstances.
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Remuneration Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior

Management
The Board considers the directors to be the senior management of
the Company.

Details of the emoluments of the directors are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interest in Transactions, Arrangement

or Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in note 13 and amount due to an ex-director
for the year end 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2020, none of the directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

All of the executive directors and independent non-executive
directors have entered into service contracts with the Company.
The term of appointment of each director was announced by the
Company's announcement in Exchange's website. The term of
appointment of each director is renewable by mutual agreement of
both parties unless terminated by not less than one months’ prior
written notice in writing to the other party. All the directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the directors, including the directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Permitted indemnity Provision and Directors’

and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Pursuant to Article 164(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
directors or other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which may incur in connection with the executive of their
duty provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty of the above persons.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
entire or primary business of the Company has been entered into or
existed during the year.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Contracts

of Significance

To the best knowledge of the directors, no contract of significance
had been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of

the Company or any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) (including interests which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Exchange were as follows:

(a) Interest in the shares of the Company

ERIRERNERED R

BESMAAM  RAFE - NAF S ET M
BARABERARNAREEFMMBERRZ
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HEREEFRKBEEG(FBEEDE57
E)NEHRPEHKRD ] EXVIEFETRESD
HNBEMEARARRLRBEIITHEZD(BIER
BEAFARBEKNBBIEXEEREIEX
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R & GEM £ 1 48 A 555,485 5.6714k /A A
GARNARBRATHESEET

(a) RELERGH E 2
Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued
Number of share capital of the

Former directors Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company
EAARBRBEE T

REES B EEEE FrERGOEE REANBHED L

Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 1) 811,950,000 26.74%

BAREE NRIKER (HiE1)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang Corporate interest (Note 2) 528,809,327 17.42%

ERIIEE NRES (B iE2)
Note 1: These shares are held by associated corporations King Full Inc Limited and

Sure Gold Ventures Limited.

Note 2: These shares are held by an associated corporation Top Bliss Holdings
Limited.
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(b) Interest in the shares of associated corporations

(b) R B LB R G

Name of Capacity/ Number of Percentage of
Former directors associated corporation Nature of interest shares held  shareholding
AEES HEEEEB 50/ ERmtE KRG & E Rt 6
Mr. Fei Jie King Full Inc Limited Corporate interest & 50,000,000 100%
beneficial owner (Note 1)
ERNEHE BEAERDA RAEEREREEA
(Htit1)
Sure Gold Ventures Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 100 100%
EEERARRA EnBBANZT)
Mr. Zhang Genjiang ~ Top Bliss Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1 100%

ERIIEAE ERERBRAF ExEBA
Note 1:  King Full Inc Limited is 90% (45,000,000 shares) directly owned by Sure

Gold Ventures Limited and is 10% (5,000,000 shares) directly owned by Mr.
Fei Jie. Sure Gold Ventures Limited is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors of the Company had an interest or short position in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or pursuant to the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

HiF1: BEARAFAINMEZANRARRARE
7N S & B B % 590%(45,000,0000% B 17) K
10%(5,000,000/% B 17) » M & & Bl A R A7
MERNTEL2EHRS -

Br b > PT#E EE & N 0 182020124318 -
ARNBMESHENER QR SR IEH)

E(E&ERFBHRHAEKGEXVER) B EMA
Rt  HHEROIESFFEEBREESFR
HAEIERBIEXVERETR FE8H S W BAME R
REIRBMRANERIAE (BREBREES
LEERNBEGRNESHEFENRAE
BN ERAR) HIREBEBESFLHAEKN
FEI2MF AR B R ZEMA E LM E =
A A HIBEGEM LW R BIE5.48E5.67
FKANSARNG RERXFIMERIRE -
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

Company.

Ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

FEREARDHER

MR2020F12A318 * AR AR IEF H K H
EIEFIE3B6ITFENEERRELMAER -
BREXFEEEBEAETEENEZI - N
THREEBINARARARRNEEITR
APHEBERBER -

ERAKEBEKRREBEEK G

Approximate
percentage of

the existing
issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company

ERARRE
EEITRAE

BRREB L% §:3:3-1 FrERGEE NN BESL

King Full Inc Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 811,950,000 26.74%

BEERAR EmBEBANMF)

Sure Gold Ventures Limited Corporate Interest (Note 1) 811,950,000 26.74%

E&EIRARAT NRES (B at1)

Mr. Fei Jie Corporate interest (Note 1) 811,950,000 26.74%

BNEE NRES (B at1)

Ms. Wu Wen Interest in spouse (Note 2) 811,950,000 26.74%

RELZL REBe RS (F:72)

Top Bliss Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 528,809,327 17.42%

ERIERBRAFR BEmBEAAMNZ3)

Mr. Zhang Genjiang Corporate interest (Note 3) 528,809,327 17.42%

ERTRE
*for identification purposes only

Notes:

REHE S (M iE3)

Y EARBEFIA

e

1. King Full Inc Limited is 10% directly held by Mr. Fei Jie and the remaining 90% 1.
directly held by Sure Gold Ventures Limited. Sure Gold Ventures Limited is
in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie. Accordingly, Sure Gold Ventures Limited
and Mr. Fei Jie are deemed to be interested in the 811,950,000 shares of the
Company held by King Full Inc Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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2. The shares are held by King Full Inc Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Fei Jie, the spouse of Ms. Wu Wen.
Accordingly, Ms. Wu Wen is deemed to be interested in the entire 811,950,000
shares by virtue of the SFO.

38 The entire issued share capital of Top Bliss Holdings Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Genjiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhang
Genjiang is deemed to be interested in the entire 528,809,327 shares held by
Top Bliss Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which has become
effective on 22 December 2010 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

On 27 May 2015 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted
share options (the “Share Options”) to the eligible persons
within the Group (the “Grantees”) pursuant to the Company’s
share option scheme launched on 22 December 2010, subject
to acceptance by the Grantees. The Share Options entitle the
Grantees to subscribe for a total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares
with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
upon exercise of the Share Options in full. The exercise price of the
Share Options granted of HK$1.17 per share represent the highest
of (i) the closing price of HK$1.17 per share on the Date of Grant; (ii)
the average closing price of HK$1.04 per share for the five business
days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of HK$0.10 per share. Details of the Grant of Share Options
was set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 May
2015. 7,500,000 options had been exercised and gross proceeds of
HK$8,775,000 was received from exercise of these options. Upon
the subdivision of shares from par value of HK$0.10 each into five
subdivided shares of par value of HK$0.02 each which became
effective on 4 May 2016, the exercise price and the number of
outstanding options were adjusted to HK$0.234 and 37,500,000
options respectively in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Share Option Scheme. On 18 May 2018, the 37,500,000 options
had been exercised and gross proceeds of HK$8,775,000 was
received from exercise of these options. There were no outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

2. HEBRGEBEARATNNA THEEERA
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CEZAREHA BEBHRBER
ERIAEWEAERERERERARAFEN
2 #0528,809,327 % A% 5 R B = o

Br £ > PT# 8 & b - 102020124318 -
B B A A R AR B A A% 19 =k 48 B A% 19
FEAREZS K EK M F3361F AL
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K 7 3% 37— 7 A BB &t 8 (2 102010412
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed

Securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Connected and Related Party Transactions
During the year, save for the connected transaction described
under the sub-section headed “Financial Review — Connected
Transaction” in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, the Group has not entered into
any significant connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirement
under the GEM Listing Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information publicly available
to the Company and to the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be informed in due
course, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company will make
further announcement of closure of register of members in due
course.

Corporate Governance

A report on corporate governance of the Company is set out on
pages 19 to 34 under the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements for each of the two years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Luo Huangshi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 May 2021
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ZHONGHUI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA TRUSTFUL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 56 to 115,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and whether the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.
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Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and
explanations for accounting books and records in respect
of certain subsidiaries of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, we were unable to carry
out audit procedures to satisfy ourselves as to whether
the following income and expenses for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 and the assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2019, and the segment information and other
related disclosure notes in relation to the Group, as included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, have
been accurately recorded and properly accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements:

HREHE E£EETHEBEAREZ
20204 R2019F12A3IH I FEN &
AAREEREENEEXHRBEETR
R ESEFETERREFUSES
= M LA T B 220204 2019412 A 31
BiEFErK A &R & R2019F12
AEWMEEREBE UEEBEHW =&
S BH D EBE R & H 48 B % 5E MY A
( BESEREAYBHREMEE)RES
ERGEVBEBRREBTHERZAA
BE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T

(a) Income and expenses for the (a) & ZF12531H 1 FEEFHK A

years ended 31 December: REZ:
Revenue ' ON
Cost of sales 85 & AR
Gross profit E A
Interest revenue A2 WA
Other incomes H Atz A
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX
Administrative expenses THAX
Other expenses Hh X
Loss from operation KEER
Finance costs b & B AR
Loss before tax FR Bt A0 5 18
Income tax expenses FriS B
Loss for the year FREBIE

Other comprehensive income for FREMEZEW R (RHFE) :

the year (after tax):

ltem that may be reclassified to profit FIEEEH DB EIB RN IER ¢

or loss:

— Exchange differences on translating — B &8N ET 2 [E 5 =5

foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss forthe HR2HEEZSH

year

118,039
(105,310)

12,729

87
2,040
(394)
(21,915)
(78,770)

(86,223)
(81)

(86,304)
(1,885)

(88,189)

1,202

(86,987)
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2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss for the year attributable to: NTATEEFREE:
Owners of the Company =WNCIEZ =N (592,729) (87,977)
Non-controlling interests FEE RS = (212)
(592,729) (88,189)
Total comprehensive loss forthe UITATEMFERZEEBEALE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ERREEAA (592,729) (86,775)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR M = = (212)
(592,729) (86,087)
(b) Assets and liabilities as at 31 (b) 201912531 81ZE R HK$'000
December 2019: BE: FAE T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Intangible assets mEEE 6,690
Property, plant and equipment Y2 BB K& 71,993
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 18,720
Deferred tax assets RIERTEE E 1,599
Prepayment for property, plant and W WERREEBENKRIE
equipment 9,600
108,602
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 40,719
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 200,947
Other receivables, deposits and HthpEUsRIE « e RFEMNFHIE
prepayments 290,650
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE & 853
533,169
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & B fth FE 1 5IE 43,113
Current tax liabilities BIEAR B & & 16,127
59,240
Net current assets REBEEFE 473,929
Net assets BEEFE 582,531
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(c)

Bank and cash balance

We were unable to obtain direct confirmation from the
Group’s banker in respect of the bank and cash balance
of HK$nil as at 31 December 2020. There was no practical
alternative procedure that we could adopt to satisfy ourselves
to the existence and valuation of bank and cash balance as
disclosed.

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves
as to the existence and completeness of the disclosures of
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves
as to the existence, accuracy and completeness of the
disclosures of the related party transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and balances as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 as required by Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”.

Except for share capital and share premium, no sufficient
evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves as to the
movements and balances of reserves as included in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the two years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves
as to the cash flows as included in the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the two years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves
as to the accuracy and completeness of the disclosures
in relation to the financial risk management, directors’ and
employees’ emoluments, loss per share and subsidiaries and
as disclosed in notes 6, 13, 15 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(c)
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Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 6
above might have a significant consequential effect on the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows for the two years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 and the financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, and the related disclosures thereof
in the consolidated financial statements.

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred a loss
of HK$600,602,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
as at 31 December 2020 the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of HK$15,713,000 and HK$15,662,000
respectively and material events mentioned in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the successful outcome that restructuring
plans to improve its financial position, to provide liquidity and
cash flows. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from the failure to
complete restructuring plans to improve its financial position,
to provide liquidity and cash flows. We consider that the
material uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. However, in view of the
extent of the uncertainty relating to the successful completion
of restructuring plans to improve its financial position, to
provide liquidity and cash flows, we disclaim our opinion
in respect of the material uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of
the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Hong Chun
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO7374

Hong Kong, 12 May 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B 22020F 128310 1 F &

2020 2019
2020F 20194F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b aF FET FHE T
Revenue A 7 - 118,039
Cost of sales 85 & P AR = (105,310)
Gross profit E F - 12,729
Interest revenue FL2 WA 8 - 88
Other incomes H b I 55 9 962 2,040
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX — (394)
Administrative expenses TR X (8,831) (38,039)
Other expenses HihF (591,130) (78,770)
Loss from operation REREEKZER (598,999) (102,346)
Finance costs b & AR 10 (4) (358)
Loss before tax FRELATE B (599,003) (102,704)
Income tax expenses BT 15 %4 B 2 11 (1,599) (1,885)
Loss for the year FRER 12 (600,602) (104,589)
Other comprehensive income for SREMZEKRZE (BRBiE):
the year (after tax):
ltem that may be reclassified to profit FIREEFH D EEEBZEMIEE -
or loss:
— Exchange differences on translating — & BN EFEL 2
foreign operations E =5 = 1,202
Total comprehensive loss forthe FARAZEEBAE
year (600,602) (103,387)
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2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FET FAET
Loss for the year attributable to: UMTATELEERER:
Owners of the Company PINNEIE =N (600,602) (104,377)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (212)
(600,602) (104,589)
Total comprehensive loss forthe LI TATEGEFEARAEE
year attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company RRABER A (600,602) (103,175)
Non-controlling interests FEERE S = (212)
(600,602) (108,387)
Loss per share (HK cents) BREE(EAWL) 15
— Basic — ER (19.78) (3.81)
— Diluted —#8 (19.78) (3.81)
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As at 31 December 2020

R20204 12 H31H

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
0N 3 FET FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Intangible assets | EE 16 - 6,690
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB REE 17 — 74,916
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 60 20,564
Deferred tax assets RERRIBE E 19 - 1,599
Prepayment for property, plant and M - WEKFREENKE
equipment - 9,600
60 113,369
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE - 40,719
Trade receivables E 5 R FHIE 20 - 200,947
Other receivables, deposits and Hfth B Wz 5118
prepayments & RBEMARE 68 292,352
Bank and cash balances RTINS & - 938
68 534,956
Current liabilities REBARE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b &~ 5OE 21 15,729 57,146
Lease liability HEAE 22 52 =
Current tax liability BNEARE IH B & - 16,127
15,781 73,273
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(AE) EEFE (15,713) 461,683
Non-current liability FREBEE
Lease liability HEAE 22 9 =
Net (liabilities)/assets (AR EEFHE (15,662) 575,052
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2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Jiog=3 FET FET
Capital and reserves EXR®E

Share capital % 23 60,724 60,724
Reserves i 24 (76,386) 514,540

Equity attributable to owners of the KRRHEBAELER
Company (15,662) 575,264
Non-controlling interests FEERE =R = (212)
Total (deficit)/equity (B4 R EHE (15,662) 575,052

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 115 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12

May 2021 and are signed on behalf of by:

Luo Huangshi

X2
Director

EF

FEOEISENG AV B RMAEEEETER

2021F5 128 #b & 1% #E 1) 2% -

EERREZ:

b=l

Tao Wah Wai Calvin
Pl 32
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

& Z 2020412 431 H 1 FEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREENELS
Retained
Capital Statutory profits/ Non-
Share  Translation contribution general (Accumulated controlling Total (deficit)/
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
AR RE
R# B’E iE - -1 FER (E4)/
& BE 1 B #E (BHER) @t B BR4E
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A1 AT AT AT AT i A AT AT AT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
(Wista) (Hith) (Hite) (Hitd)

At 1 January 2019 201951 1A 53,508 504,135 (23,022) 12,144 5,693 85,268 637,726 10,904 648,630

Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEKIEAE = - 1,202 - - (104,377) (103,175) 212 (103,387)

Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - (5,693) - (5,693) (10,904) (16,597)

Issue of shares on placement RREERETRN 7,216 39,190 - - - - 46,406 - 46,406

A 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31R 60,724 543,325 (21820) 12,144 - (19,109 575,264 219) 575,052

A1 January 2020 R2020E1 518 60,724 543,325 (21,820) 12,144 - (19,109) 575,264 212) 575,052

Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZARKIEAE - - - - - (600,602) (600,602) - (600,602)

Disposal of subsidiaries LENRBAR - - 21,820 (12,144) - - 9,676 212 9,888

At 31 December 2020 120206124310 60,724 543,325 - - - (619,711) (15,662) - (15,662)

Notes: Kt -

(@)  Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the share premium (&)  RIEE FE1981F R BDE (FEFT)  ARAIZ IR
of the Company can be used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to DEBAESNEETTARARR 2 MRE
be issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares. TR - WH ARERMBAAR -

(o)  Translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the translation (b)) BREREFHEEEEASE SN EBHNEEFEH
of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their functional HREBRERAEENZSEE (BT
currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”)) TNEEAMELZSE BEEREME2EKEP
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated BRERREXFEERRT ZEREXHFEZR
in the translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the AHEREEREE BN EBRETSDEEE
exchange reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign A o
operations.

(©) Capital contribution reserve represents the contribution of inventories from  (c) AERERERRAREEEAFE -
shareholder to the Group.

(d)  Statutory general reserve was established in accordance with the relevant rules  (d) JAE —MREHEHBRBEHEARLIME((HE])

of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and regulations and the article
of association of respective companies of the Group. The PRC companies
are required to transfer certain of their net profits, as determined under the
approval by the Board to statutory general reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt Z2020F 1231 1F F /&

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash flows from operating RETHFRESRERE
activities
Loss before tax B B Al &5 48 (599,003) (102,704)
Adjustment for: HTINZBEELFHE:
Amortisation of intangible assets A E - 2,280
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEREZETE
equipment - 25,254
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE 43 =
Finance costs Bl & K A 4 358
Interest revenue MEMKA = (88)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME BMELAXEZEE
and equipment 2,771 —
Others Hfth 591,586 (19,774)
Operating loss before working capital &3E& & Z FpI& 2518
changes (4,599) (94,674)
Change in inventories GFE&® - 30,926
Change in trade and other B 5 I Ao fth & WK
receivables, deposits and e RN Iéiﬁ
prepayments 1,897 (88,027)
Change in amount due from a JE W — ] A Bt R R FROIR &
related company - 117
Change in trade and other payables B R EMENKEES 1,694 28,377
Change in contract liabilities AEHEEBEEE - (1,822)
Change in amounts due to non- FETFE 45 IR A 2 SR IR B2 B
controlling interests - (122)
Cash used in operations LEMANIE (1,008) (75,225)
Tax paid AP ST - (3,728)
Net cash used in operating RETHRANESFEE
activities (1,008) (78,953)
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Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

Repayment to an ex-director

Repayments of lease liabilities

Issue of shares on placement

Interest paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR

Analysis of cash and cash
equivalents
Bank and cash balances

REETHNWREER
HEWE  MEMREMEKEA
SR @SN

REEFHFSREFER

METHHNRER
[ —HAEFER
BEHERRE

AC &R RITRND
ENHE

METH(A), FEREFE

RERASEEBYRD FE
FANRERREEEY

EXSHNTE

FREESRESEEY

ReRAESEEBYIHW

RITRBE L EER
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2020
20204
HK$°000
FET

2019
20194
HK$'000
FET

88

88

(22,928)

46,406

23,478

(55,387)

56,683

(358)

938

938



For the year ended 31 December 2020

China Trustful Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in Bermuda on 14 June 2010 and its shares are
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 26 January 2011. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The address of
its principal place of business was Room 8, Flat C, 12/F,
Por Mee Factory Building, 500 Castle Peak Road, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Subsequent to end of the
reporting period, its principal place of business has been
changed to Unit 1603, 16th Floor, The Phoenix, No. 23 Luard
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 15 March 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together
with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$600,602,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020, as at 31 December
2020 the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$15,713,000 and HK$15,662,000 respectively and material
events mentioned in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

# Z20204F 12 H31H 1F E/Z

FRZEEEBEERA2ATERARD R
2010F6 4B EBE R E MY &
ELBEREBERAR HEOR
0NF1A2BR E R BB ER ST A
FRAAE (8RR GEM ET - AR A
Z #E it 9% = & 2 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
Bermuda ° "QA A 2 £ B & X i Bh /Y
Wit BEBENER YD E S LES005%
AEITEANEI2IECHESE - NIREH
KRig EEXBLEHEE RN2021F3A
158 B A& B &1 E HE235% Bl
1611603 o

ARAMEBXRBRREER - AR
BB AR CERARAFMEAEM])
MEBXEBHERNGEAHBRERME
26 °

#H Z2020F12A831H Lt F E - KN &
B & 4 & 1 #9600,602,000/ 7T A
2020F12A31H - A& B M B A E
F Rk BEFE D A A/15,713,000%
JC %15,662,000/%8 7T * LA K &R & BF 15
WA FTFT MM EARAEE - 2515
MBREFEEATNEERE Al
AEEFELE 2R NIBREREER
At "EBE R EZREEEBLB
ERERHEERREKEARE -
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the successful outcome that restructuring plans to improve
its financial position, to provide liquidity and cash flows. The
directors are therefore of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to continue as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to adjust the value of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2020. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and amounts reported for the current
year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
are disclosed in note 5 to these consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

EREVBREDIBER BT R
EM EBDNRE TR R FT
GEME#H 8 8l R & B 2 5 & 6 /9
BABEATHEE -

o ¢

N

ZEGAVBERRIIBRIEESLKAE
ke

RENEBTEMBRELEANGEA Y
BHREAFEERAE TEERR KM -
HNBREERNERASTHRRNBERE
R I o 8 M B K ) S X
ZEREMBHRERM FEOWE -

MAEZERAVBRRAEANER
SEAERRHEINWT -

BEVEBRREEARAREWEBEA
RIE E12A31B L 20 HmEk - H B
NRAEAEEREERE ER - E
AEBREDNAFRE EK M AERZ

EIRzEABRKZEEEFEF @ IWaEE
ZEETEREIAFEZSOHRE
A RNEEEFZERE E4ASEES
WIREREF - T EESREEE (A
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit of loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income), the amount that
was recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
on the same basis as would be required if the previously held
equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

(il

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

—  Buildings 5%

—  Leasehold improvements 5%-33%
—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20%

—  Plant and machinery 5%-20%
—  Motor vehicles 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to
write off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:
—  Buildings 33%-100%
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease
payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration
costs. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases
are leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets are assets of value below United States dollars
(“US$”) 5,000.
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Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

—  Licenses 10 years
—  Software 3 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at
fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets
at amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.
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The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial instrument
(“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade receivables,
or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result from
default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to
a customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the
laws that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the product or service.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
deducted from the carrying amount of the assets. The grant is
recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first
against any unamortised deferred income set up in respect
of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any
such deferred income, or where no deferred income exists,
the repayment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by
increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the
deferred income by the amount repayable. The cumulative
additional depreciation that would have been recognised in
profit or loss to date in the absence of the grant is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(vi)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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(viij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viiiy The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
deferred tax assets, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgement that has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the successful outcome that restructuring plans to improve its
financial position, to provide liquidity and cash flows. Details
are explained in note 2 to consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balance and
trade and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following information is used:

— internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower; and

— significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 365 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their risk and how the loan
loss provision is determined for each of the categories.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category and
adjusts for forward looking data.

6.

cRIERER(Z)

REBGIEE FE U GRIARE
AmERR - A REREEERR
R a0 AR 5h & JE B B E B R A o
FREBEHMEEBEXR  AKH
ZERERNZELEBEREER I Y
B ME BB E L o

Category Definition Loss provision

Al E & BERE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12-month expected losses
R 4F EHORBER I NHE 128 AFEHER
Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
TR EERREELM 2 HITE S 1R

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is
as follows:

AEENBRRRERERER
REMRBDESTE  BERMERS
FARORCHE UWREEHR

rEBETREBENIHBESTH
T

Less than
1 year or
repayable on Between 1
demand and 2 years
P1ER A
REREE 1225
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
At 31 December 2020 #®2020F12A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fth &~ 5UE 15,729 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 54 9
15,783 9
At 31 December 2019 2019512 H31H
Trade and other payables 2 5 & A At &S 5 IE 57,146 —
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. SRIAREEE)
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its 7N 5 B T R H R 2 R B 2k B H iR
bank and cash balances. These deposits bear interests TEREES  ZEHFRIRER
at variable rates varied with the then prevailing market MREBHZBFEGE -
condition.
No sensitivity analysis is presented as the directors of HRARBIEERA/BITRRE
the Company consider that the interest rate fluctuation EHREENF B R AR X
on interest income arising from bank and cash balances BIWAEKN - W E2YHXE
is insignificant. DT o
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FEor
Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost RBENAGTENSREE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BFEREMBEEEY) 4 201,885
Financial liabilities: cRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost KK A EN SR B E 15,729 55,353

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEER

Revenue mainly represent contract revenue from the Electric
Vehicle Business and contract revenue from the Energy and

Petrochemicals Business.

Sz
S5 o

g

W T BERBEGAEXHZED
Wk REEREALEET GO

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr
Sales of goods: B e
— Electric vehicles and related — EHAEREEER
products — 22,184
— Energy and petrochemical related  — 8£)R & A H{k THE M E &
products - 78,255
Commission and consultancy fee HekFHABIRA
income - 17,600
Revenue from contracts with EPAEHBA
customers - 118,039
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The management reviews the Group’s internal reporting for
performance assessment between segments and resource
allocation. The management has determined the operating
segments based on business lines (products and services)
and geographical areas. The management has determined
that the Group is organised into two main operating
segments: (i) Electric Vehicle Business; and (ii) Energy and
Petrochemicals Business. The management measures the
performance of the segments based on their respective
segment results.

The principal products and services of each of these
operations are as follows:

(1)  Electric Vehicle Business — research and development,
manufacture and sale of rechargeable batteries, electric
vehicles and related products and provision of related
services; and

(2) Energy and Petrochemicals Business — provision of
marketing and management services, sales and
distribution of energy and petrochemical related
products, including but not limited to, LNG and LPG
products and licensing of petroleum gas stations.
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The Group manufactures and sells goods to the customers.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to a
customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products and the customer has
obtained legal titles to the products.

The products are sold with volume discounts based on
aggregate sales over a 12 months period. Revenue from
these sales is recognised based on the prices specified
in the contracts, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide
for the volume discounts, using the expected value method.
A contract liability is recognised for the expected volume
discounts payable to customers in relation to the sales made.

The products sold to customers are returnable to the
Group within one month from delivery to the customers.
Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the prices
specified in the contracts, net of the estimated sales return.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for
the sales return, using the expected value method. A contract
liability is recognised for the expected sales return payable to
customers in relation to the sales made.

The Group’s obligation to provide a refund for faulty products
under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a
provision.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30
to 180 days. For new customers, deposits or cash on delivery
may be required. Deposits received are recognised as a
contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
to the customers as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group provides consultancy service to the customers.
Commission and consultancy fee income is recognised when
the related service is rendered and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
service.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable operating
segments including the reconciliations to loss before tax are
as follows.

WA 5 ZRE #

AEERZFPRHEBARS - ZHMA
ARGEERFBEREAERA H
BERBTHNEBXREXETPEIR
7 o

AR EE T2 REEH B E R (B
ERBHAABHHE) DT -

Energy and Electric

Petrochemicals Vehicle
Business Business Total

R R BE
Amt TR REER Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2020 % £2020%F12531H
LLFE

Reportable segment revenue B e - — =
Reportable segment profit A ¥ & 7 2B = - - -
Interest revenue A2 WA -
Corporate income and expenses A & W A & f 2 (599,003)
Loss before tax MR ATE B (599,003)

RBERNE - BIE -
IrEREIHR R T

Adjusted earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARZHEHR
(Continued)
Energy and Electric
Petrochemicals Vehicle
Business Business Total
Bl TER MEBER MEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2019  &{ £2019412 A31H
IEFE
Reportable segment revenue EE: &

(note (a)) (K772 (2) 78,255 39,784 118,039
Reportable segment profit Al ¥R &5 5 2B i 7 2,536 4,918 7,454
Interest revenue PSRN 88
Corporate income and expenses 2 & I A & 1 % (110,246)
Loss before tax B %t B &S 1 (102,704)
Adjusted earnings before RN E - B8 -

interest, tax, depreciation and MERBENAT

amortisation (note (b)) (K7 7)) 2,536 18,120 20,656

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results
represent profit earned by each segment without allocation of
interest revenue, central administrative income and expenses
including partial other revenue and other income, directors’
remuneration and partial finance costs under the heading
of “corporate income and expenses”. This is the measure
reported to management for the purposes of performance
assessment between segments and resource allocation.

REDH @t RREAEEN S5
BR - D EEREES D BB
ZA - MES W B[ ATRA KRS
BTZHMBWKA - FRITBRA K
X(BREBIEMBAREMEA - &
EMeRBMOBMEKAN) - T ES
AEBTEEEBFERFESBRER
DEBHNRRZA -
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.
(Continued)

WARDEER (&)

BERAKEAREDHEERAEDN

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments assets

and liabilities are as follows: BRI
Energy and Electric
Petrochemicals Vehicle
Business Business Total
HRR EHE
At TE% E st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2020 ®2020%F12A31H
Reportable segment assets AHRENHEE — - -
Unallocated assets AOMEE 128
Total assets MEE 128
Reportable segment liabilities AHEsHaRE - - -
Unallocated liabilities Ko afkE 15,790
Total liabilities weE 15,790
Energy and Electric
Petrochemicals Vehicle
Business Business Total
82 R & EE)THE
Fomie TER EY 4@t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H
Reportable segment assets ~ AJ R & D & &= 2,957 630,248 633,205
Unallocated assets ROMEE 15,120
Total assets REE 648,325
Reportable segment liabilities Al & H LA E 2,392 57,636 60,028
Unallocated liabilities RKHoBREE 13,245
Total liabilities BaEE 73,273
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring performance assessment
between segments and resource allocation, all assets and
liabilities are allocated to the reportable segments other than
those that are for central administrative purposes including
partial property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets,
prepayment for property, plant and equipment, partial
deposits, prepayments and other receivables, tax recoverable,
partial bank and cash balances, partial other payables,

amount due to a director and current tax liabilities.

7. BARSHER

FLE IR R

BMIEBEE)EIN

aNEy)

D ERRERERD KM
5 BREEFRITHEN (BESSYX
BMEIEHE BREHBREE WE-
R b iR 2 TR AN AR
TR R IR B B Al e W SRIR AT M e A
H-BARTRRSER
ENRE BN—2EERBERNH
MEEENRAEY

DEZFAHREDH -

MwokE

o E M

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or 25 AP mk D RIEEMN SR
segment assets:
Energy and
Petrochemicals  Electric Vehicle
Business Business Unallocated Total
BRKR EfRE
FHtIER %% AOE @5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 B £2020F12831H
December 2020 LEE
Finance costs BEM A - - 4 4
Depreciation of right-of- (A& EHT &
use assets - - 43 43
Energy and
Petrochemicals Electric Vehicle
Business Business Unallocated Total
AR & BYE
BRI IER % AAH Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETL FHET FET
Year ended 31 #HZE2019512A31H
December 2019 HEE
Interest revenue FlEWA - - 88 88
Finance costs BEMAK - - 358 358
Amortisation of intangible % /& £ #
assets — 2,280 — 2,280
Depreciation of property, #1% - BERZETE
plant and equipment — 20,799 4,455 25,254
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2019: nil).

(b) Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
is also a measurement basis regularly reviewed by the directors in
performance assessment between segments and resources allocation.
This measurement basis is consistent with that of the segment results
except that finance costs, amortisation of intangible assets, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of interest in
leasehold land are not included in the adjusted earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation.

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating profit
were generated in the PRC for both years and over 90% of
the Group’s non-current assets were located in the PRC, no
geographical segment information in accordance with HKFRS
8 Operating Segments is presented.

Revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group are as follows:

AR 5 3B

@ EXMERODBBABIILESEA -
RAERARE D &P & (20194 « &) -

) EFEHNEHLCAERMNE BB N
ERBENAN FRAFHEIBHRR
RERDEMGEEE - W ERER
DEEE B HEKFHELRANE  BHE -
FEREHNBANTEERERES &
WEEHHE DE BERIRBEFTER
HELoEs s -

F 1A PR I8 4R X 5= [ B 1890 % HY M A
REEBFHORATE  UEAEE
BB RBEEMNFE - &
WEZHNGEB MG REERFES
SRAEE D BEME D FE R

B FE R & 220209 &2019412 A31H
\EFE A AEEREK A10% A £
BB :

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Reporting segments HK$’000 HK$'000
& DB FET FET
Customer A (note) Electric Vehicle Business
BPA K E) BEIEXRK - 17,600

Note:

Revenue derived from Customer A did not contribute 10% or more to the
Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Except as disclosed above, no other customers contributed
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for both years.
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10.

INTEREST REVENUE

FBEWA

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Bank interest income |17 H B U A - 88
OTHER INCOMES Hbug A
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Government grants (note) BB (47 22) 962 1,152
Sundry income I A - 888
962 2,040
Note: Btz -

Government grants of HK$962,000 (2019: HK$1,152,000) have been received

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

H E2020F12A31H L F E ' BE W BT # B

962,000 7T (20194 : 1,152,000/ JT) °

FINANCE COSTS & KA
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET Fi# T
Imputed interest on lease liability HEAGBZHERE 4 358
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

PR BB

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BNEAF 1B — FE S
— Provision for the year — FREE - 1,885
Deferred tax (note 19) IR E R IR (M 22 19) 1,599 =
1,599 1,885

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%. The directors of the Company considered
the amount involved upon implementation of the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated
financial statements.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that year.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax at
25% for both years.
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12.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

12.

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging the

following:

FABE
AEBFEBHHECSNBKRTIIRER:

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Auditor’s remuneration % £ A Bl &
— Audit service — BZR 600 600
— Non-audit services — EFEZRS 90 =
690 600
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA - 96,265
Amortisation of intangible assets EREE#EE - 2,280
Depreciation of property, plant and M  WMEKZEITE
equipment - 25,254
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 43 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW%E - MEAXEZEE
equipment 2,771 —
Staff costs including directors’ BEINAN(BEEENE)
emoluments
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — e A RER 2,689 7,578
— Retirement benefit schemes — ROKTE A FT 8 5K
contributions 68 980
Total staff costs BT KB 2,757 8,558
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS

The emoluments paid or payable to directors of the EffskEMARAREEHM S 0
Company are as follows: T
Retirement
benefit
schemes
Fee contributions Total
BIREF
B STEIERR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Executive directors BITES
Fei Jie (note j) BN i) - = =
Wong Kin Fai (note ii) TR\ i) 77 2 79
Lo Wing Sang (note i) B8O A (7 i) 47 - 47
Wong Ching fai, William (note iv) &= B8 (41 i#iv) 255 - 255
Luo Huangshi (note v) SEH (M E) 29 - 29
Tao Wah Wai, Calvin (note vi) b 1 32 (/7 2 vi) 9 = 9

Independent non-executive BIYFHTES

directors
Sit Sai Hung, Billy (note vii) Bt 1 (M1 72 vii) 278 - 278
Shen Ruolei (note vii) LA B (B viii) - - -
Lai Wing Kwan (note ix) F8 B AR (H7 2t ix) - = =
Law Yiu Sang, Jacky (note x) BRE(NFxX) 38 - 38
Man Wai Lun (note xi) SR B (A7 i xi) 92 — 92
Law Yui Lun (note xii) TR B (Y 2 xii) 37 — 37
Hu Chao (note vi) HRRA (B 2 vi) 3 - 3
Wong Lok Man (note xii) T &R (1 5t xiii) - — -

Lo Cheuk Fei, Jeffrey (note xiij) & & 7 (# ## xiii) - - =

Total for year 2020 20204 F @5t 865 2 867
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. ESREEME (E)

(Continued)
Retirement
scheme
Fee contributions Total
RIREF
B R[5 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETL FHET FHET
Executive directors HTES
Fei Jie, former director (note j) B MEESH ) 1,200 = 1,200
Ng Chin Ming Stephen, former director BB + AT & = (A7 7 xiv)

(note xiv) 200 3 203
Zhang Genjiang (‘Mr. Zhang’), former ~ ERT(ELE])  FIEES

director (note xv) (HiFxv) 100 = 100
Fung Chi Kin, former director (note xvi) 558 » AEE Z (ff iFxvi) 1,125 = 1,125
Wong Kin Fai, former director (note i) TRE - AEES A Fi) 760 9 769
Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES
Jim Yiu Ming, former director (note xvi)  ERBH + BT E E (H 2 xvii) 205 - 205
Sit Sai Hung, Billy, former director B MEEE W 2vi)

(note vij) 300 — 300
Shen Ruolei, former director (note vii) NEE  HEESE (M Hvi)) 240 = 240
Lai Wing Kwan, former director (note ix) ~ #8418 » RIT & F (47 £ix) 35 - 35
Total for year 2019 20195 B A5t 4,165 12 4177
Notes: Kt -

(i) Resigned on 8 December 2020. (i) K2020F12 A8H FH £ °

(ii) Appointed on 21 June 2019 and resigned on 20 January 2020. (ii) R201996 A21H & £ £ I %2020
F1H20H BHE ©

(i) Appointed on 20 May 2020 and resigned on 30 July 2020. (iiy  P2020%5H20H ¥ £ £ I 712020
F7A30B BT °

(ivy  Appointed on 3 June 2020 and resigned on 5 November 2020. (iv)  P202046H3H & % f I %2020

F11ASHBHE -

(v) Appointed on 2 December 2020. (v) MR2020F12 A2HEZF -

(vij  Appointed on 23 December 2020. (vi)  F2020F12 A23HEZ T

(vi)  Resigned on 4 December 2020. (viiy 72020512 4B & fE ©

(viii)  Resigned on 17 January 2020. (viii)  PA2020F1 B17HEHE

(ix)  Appointed on 8 November 2019 and resigned on 17 July 2020. (ix)  M2019411A8H % £ (£ I 72020
FTAITHBHE -

(x) Appointed on 17 January 2020 and resigned on 13 March 2020. (x) M20204F1 178 % & T I 122020
F3A13HBHT °

(xi)  Appointed on 5 February 2020 and resigned on 9 November (xiy  M20209F2A50 & Z {F It 72020
2020. F11A9RBHE -

(xii)  Appointed on 17 July 2020 and resigned on 30 September 2020. (xiiy 202047 A17H & Z £ I 72020

FIAB0HBHE
(xiii)  Appointed on 31 December 2020. (xiiiy  HA2020F12 ABIBEZR T -
(xiv)  Resigned on 28 February 2019. (xiv)  7A20194F2 A28 H & f °
(xv)  Resigned on 15 December 2019. (xv) FA20194F12 A15H B (T
(xvi)  Resigned on 15 October 2019. (xvi)  HR2019F 108158 B 1E °
(xvi) Resigned on 8 November 2019. (xvii) HR2019F11 A8HBHE
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The five highest paid individuals include two (2019:
three) directors whose emoluments are presented in the
disclosures in note 13(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the remaining three

13. EEREEME (&)

#H 20204 M2019%12 A318 1t
FE O TETRNESHNEXRE
WETMMEOLHE -

TEESHFMALBEME (2019
FZREE REMEERER
EMBREMTIB@QPOKESR
Ko Her =45 (2019 : &) A

(2019: two) individuals are as follows: THM ST :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FE T
Salaries and other benefits FekEMEAR 872 949
Retirement benefit schemes RAIKTE A EHEI AR
contributions 36 27
908 976
Their emoluments are within the following bands: BEZMESNFIATEHE -
2020 2019
20204 20194
Number of Number of
employees employees

BEAH BE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,000% 7T

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

14. DIVIDENDS
No final dividend was paid or proposed during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend
been proposed by the Board subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.
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15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is BEREAARNREEEIEDRET Y HUE
based on the following: AHE:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Loss for the purpose of calculating M EERERK
basic and diluted loss per share BEEENEIE (600,602) (104,377)
2020 2019
20204 20194
‘000 ‘000
FR F Az
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MIA1EBEE T @R 3,036,200 2,675,424
Effect of shares issued to owners of MARBHEEAZITROHZE
the Company — 62,215

Weighted average number of ordinary FEfBEEFREAR #EEEIERN
shares for the purpose of calculating & & P& /i # F 15 &

basic and diluted loss per share 3,036,200 2,737,639
The denominators used are same as those detailed above for FrAn 8 5t 8 2 5% & AN K%
both basic and diluted loss per share. SEEBEMEAMER -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE

Licenses Software Total
hEER B4 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Cost 2N
At 1 January 2019, 31 R2019F1A1H -

December 2019 and 201912 A31H &

1 January 2020 202041418 1,319 6,445 7,764

Disposal of subsidiaries i & B B A7) (1,319) (6,445) (7,764)
At 31 December 2020 12020412 H31H — — —
Accumulated amortisation E-: 5]
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H 89 54 143
Charge for the year FAZ W 132 2,148 2,280
Exchange alignments bE H 7 & — (1,349) (1,349)
At 31 December 2019 and PR2019F12 H31H &

1 January 2020 20201 A1H 221 853 1,074
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B AR (221) (853) (1,074)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H - - -
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H - - -
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 1,098 5,592 6,690
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y%  BMERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment machinery vehicles Total
Be-
g EER HBER
BT % HfE He hat: a5t
HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx TEx FEx T FET FEx
Cost KA
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 20191818 »

2019 and 1 January 2020 20195124318 &

202051718 49074 6,298 2,068 69,906 4217 131,618
Disposal HE = 87m) 615) - (704) (5,006)
Disposal of subsidiaries LENBAF (49,074) (2,516) (1,483) (69,906) (3,573 (126,522)
At 31 December 2020 720206124317 - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation RHTE
At 1 January 2019 R2019E1R1H 6,020 1,601 812 20,893 2122 31,448
Charge for the year FRZ 6,488 779 428 15,667 1892 25,254
At 31 December 2019 and R201912A318 &

1 January 2020 202041718 12,508 2,380 1,240 36,560 4,014 56,702
Disposal irk4 - (1,196) (310) - (704 (2,210)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERE AT (12,508) (1,184) (930) (36,560) (3,310) (54,492)
At 31 December 2020 R2020 124318 - - - - - -
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 R202012 4315 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A310 36,566 3918 828 33,346 263 74916

AEENBFMRPE - FATHE

BERA -

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC held on
medium-term leases.

FH
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. FEFAEEE

Disclosure of lease-related items: WEHEMRBPEE:
At 31 December: W12 8318 : 2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Right-of-use assets — buildings FTRAEEE — BF 60 20,564

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

— Less than 1 year — 1FLAT

— Between 1 and 2 years — 1224

Year ended 31 December: HE12A31BILEE -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE

— Buildings — BF

Lease interests HERNE

Total cash outflow for leases HERS L BE
Additions to right-of-use assets CTRAEEERE

The Group leases various buildings. Lease agreements are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants and the leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 19. BELEHBEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by AEEECHRANETERELEHBEED
the Group. T o

Allowance for
credit losses

FEERRE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and R2019F1A1H » 2019F12A31H &

1 January 2020 20201 A1H 1,599
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AT (1,599)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 H31H -

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EZEWRIE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Trade receivables B S WA - 200,947
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE - =
— 200,947
Trade receivables were non-interest bearing and are generally EORRABEBATTER—MBETHE
allows a credit period of 30 to 180 days to its customers. EFE30&180KZ EH -
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. BSMEWHIEE)

The following was an aging analysis of trade receivables, net REZRH(EZ N RERBEES)
of allowance for credit losses recognised, presented based on BHZESRERREGGREERE
the invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue BEEEBRE) 2ERONMENREER
recognition dates and net of allowance for credit losses: BREER T :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#T
181-365 days 1812 365H — 17,160
Over 365 days it @365 H - 183,787
- 200,947
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EFREMENFIE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Trade payables B 5 R RIE - 28,661
Accruals and other payables FEETE A & H b B 5B 6,287 19,620
Amount due to an ex-director Bt — BRI EE A 9,442 7,072
Receipt in advance TE U R IE - 117
Trade deposits received BB WiES — 1,676
15,729 57,146
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21.

22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The following was an aging analysis of trade payables, based

21.

BN EMENREAGE)
BREZAMEINN 2B HRNFTALZK

on the invoice date: RO :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Over 90 days HB3Eo0H - 28,661

The average credit period granted to the Group by suppliers

is 30 to 180 days.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease payments

HEBETAEENFHEREHAN T
30%180H -

22. HEEE

Present value of
lease payments

HEMNMRK HESREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year —F R 54 — 52 —
In the second to fifth years, E_EERF
inclusive (BHEERMT) 9 — 9 =
63 —
Less: Future finance charges & : KR K g & & (2) —
Present value of lease HEAEGERE
liabilities 61 — 61 —
Less: Amount due for B PA121E A A 2 HR
settlement within 12 HEERFHIER
months (shown under MENBFEIE T
current liabilities) | 7R) (52) =
Amount due for settlement R12ME A& 2 Bk &
after 12 months ") 3k I8 9 =
At 31 December 2020, the weighted average lessee’s 2020%F12 318 - &M A B9 0 & F

incremental borrowing rate was 5.13% per annum. Interest
rate are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

95 B {2 3 F FIE B5.13% o FIER
AWESMEE ALSAEEETER
TEFIERR -

FH
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23. SHARE CAPITAL

23. B

Movements of the share capital of the Company are as KRR AEEINT
follows:
Number of
shares Amount
B 5 EE &4
‘000 HK$’000
FAg FET
Authorised: JRTE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each B R%0.0278 T H) £ 3E A%
At 1 January 2019, 31 December n2019F181H8
2019, 1 January 2020 and 31 2019%412H31H -
December 2020 2020F1H1B &
2020%12H31H 5,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR:
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H 2,675,424 53,508
Placement of new shares e & # I 1D (BY 2 K ii)
(notes i and ii) 360,776 7,216
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 201912 H31H -
2020 and 31 December 2020 2020F1H1H K
2020F12H31H 3,036,200 60,724
Notes: ol

(ii)

On 24 June 2019, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
60,776,000 new shares of HK$0.02 each to not less than six placees
at a price of HK$0.53 per share. The net proceeds of the placing of
approximately HK$19,260,000 is intended to be used for working
capital and approximately of HK$12,150,000 is intended to be used for
developing energy and petrochemical projects.

On 25 November 2019, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate
of 300,000,000 new shares of HK$0.05 per share. The net proceeds
from the subscription amount to approximately HK$15,000,000.
Approximately HK$5,000,000 of the net proceeds will be used for
working capital to the Group to meet any future development and
obligations. Approximately HK$10,000,000 of the net proceeds was
intended to develop electric charging and oil and gas business.
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(i)

R2019F6 248 + A& A & LA & f%0.53/%8
TLZ B AR DR N & A R A BE 3 R B
77 & #£60,776,0008% & & ® 1H0.027% T
ZHFBRG REFEMSREBEEREFRLD
19,260,000 T hst Bl BIELEE & - A
& #912,150,000%8 7T 73 51 &1 A 70 % & 88 R
kAeMm{EITEE -

R2019F11A258 « A A 7 g % &k & 17
4 #£300,000,0008% & f% ™ {E0.05/8 7T
MM REFERMFSRBFEL
#$15,000,000/ JT ° FTfs R IE FREH 4
5,000,000 THAEREE S EE S
NRBEMARREERRBHEANTE -
FT 15 3% 38 7 B2 ¥ 410,000,000 7T # A
BRRABRAREY °



23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital
requirements.

The directors review the capital structure on annual basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
issue of new shares or repurchase of existing shares as well
as issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

24. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

23. RA& (&)

AEBEEEER UERASEE

TERBBEARERLE RBEEE
TEBERESHEBRREBATREAK
B - NEE ERREREZFAR -

24 85 [ 3 42 D B £ 7§10 16 10 0 8 A
=

EETFEHNELARE - EARTH
—HD EBEFEEEAKRAREZRE
BEXREEORR REBEESFHNEZ
REEKEBRNRE - BITHBRN
HBEERERDARETHEBLE
EREEHFEHLERBENRE -

24, f#fE
AEENFEHBEEEREZEHR

e kEMEEREREK
RERDSEHKRES -

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
B 17 % B 2 BB st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FE T FET
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1H1H 504,135 (92,709) 411,426
Loss and total FABER
comprehensive loss for F>HEBEBE
the year — (16,403) (16,403)
Issue of shares on REEERZEITRMD
placement 39,190 — 39,190
At 31 December 2019 and  FA2019F 12 H31H &
1 January 2020 20201 A1H 543,325 (109,112) 434,213
Loss and total FABER
comprehensive loss for >HEBEBE
the year — (510,599) (510,599)
At 31 December 2020 2020F12 H31H 543,325 (619,711) (76,386)
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25. STATEMENT OF FINANICAL POSITION OF THE 25. AR B AR K

COMPANY
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - BB R - 2,923
Right-of-use assets EHREEE - 1,844
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARNKRE - 5,241
- 10,008
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hth e RIE - & KRB FHIE
prepayments 65 16,702
Amounts due from subsidiaries & BT B~ B 5R IR - 482,175
Bank and cash balances IR1T MR € & - 85
65 498,962
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K H b S 5B 15,727 14,033
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EEFE (15,662) 484,929
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB BEEZRE (15,662) 494,937
Capital and reserves % 2 R 5 15
Share capital % < 60,724 60,724
Reserves 1 (76,386) 434,213
Total (deficit)/equity (B#)  HFEHE (15,662) 494,937

China Trustful Group Limited R E 2B ER A 7



COMPANY

The following list contains only the particulars of major
subsidiaries of the Company which principally affected the

results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

26. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

26. ARATMBATRFE

/‘E

o

TREHIE

BYEAKEXRE &
EXBENARBDIZMNBEARMNF

Place of
incorporation and Issued and Proportion of ownership
principal place fully paid interest/voting power held by
Name of subsidiary of business share capital the Company Principal activities
ML E R EETR ERABBEZHER/
il PN TEEERY BRRE REELH TEXH
2020 2019
2020%F 20195
% %
Direct subsidiaries
EEREAR
Core Kingdom Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 100  Investment holding
(“BVI")
EBRAES 50,000 7T RERR
(XWEZHEB))
State Achieve Investments BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
RERAES e REZR
Indirect subsidiaries
CE3) P
Runhao Technology (HK) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Investment holding
Limited
BENMK(BER)ERAR  BA 10,000/ 7T REER
International Faith Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Sale of rechargeable
batteries, electric vehicles
and related products
BRERAERATF £ 1B HEREH FEHAER
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For the retail and wholesale of luxury brand silverware, silver
utensils and luxury goods in the PRC (the “Silverware
Business”), all the assets, including but not limited to
the books and accounting records, vouchers, computers,
company stamps, relevant stocks, etc, of two subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC, namely #7T:BE &L BEELHR
A A] (for identification purpose, Zhejiang Tong Yin Precious
Metal Operation Company Limited (“Zhejiang Tong Yin”)
and fTINERE R EE R AR A A (for identification purpose,
Hangzhou Yin Xin Investment Management Company Limited)
(the “Records and Documents”) were seized by the Ministry
of Public Security of the PRC as the Records and Documents
were kept and stored in a shared office with one of the
resigned executive director, Mr. Zhang Genjiang, who holds
49% equity interest of Zhejiang Tong Yin and was arrested
during the course of seizure of other businesses of Mr. Zhang
Genjiang (the “Special Circumstance”). The Company has
not received any official documentation from the Ministry
of Public Security of the PRC nor any relevant departments
from the PRC government and the Special Circumstance was
merely notified to the Company in January 2020 by relevant
staff of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company. The Company
has checked relevant information from the Bureau of Industry
and Commerce of the PRC and other unofficial company
search engine to verify the Special Circumstance and no
information could be founded except the equity of Zhejiang
Tong Yin was frozen in January 2020.

The Company has already appointed PRC lawyer to verify the
seizure situation and follow up with the Special Circumstance
including the possibility for recovering the Records and
Documents. The Company has obtained a preliminary legal
opinion report issued by PRC lawyers in which the PRC
lawyer advised that there is no way to recover the Records
and Documents at the moment as now it is under the
criminal investigation and carried out by the Ministry of Public
Security of the PRC. The Company was further advised that
the Record and Documents would be released only in such
criminal investigation case was closed and found innocence
with the criminal investigation.

For the Electric Vehicle Business, the subsidiaries which are
operating the Electric Vehicle Business in PRC that such PRC
subsidiaries are also subject to investigation by the Ministry
of Public Security of the PRC (the “Investigated Electric
Vehicle Business Subsidiaries”) in connection with the
Special Circumstance.
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N AT ETIARRE -
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In July 2020, the Company was informed orally by the
subsidiary which is operating the Electric Vehicle Business
in PRC that as revealed by a governmental website, a piece
of land of that subsidiary was disposed pursuant an order
of the Government in early 2020 (the “Land Disposal”). In
this circumstance, the Company was only aware this incident
recently and in fact, no official documentation was received
by the Company and the Company then did not have any
knowledge as to the situation about the Land Disposal.
Accordingly, the Company has taken appropriate action
immediately to appoint PRC lawyer to investigate, gather
evidence and take appropriate action, subject to the advice by
the PRC lawyer, in order for the purpose to verify whether it
was an inappropriate disposal and try the best to preserve the
assets of the subsidiary and whether the Group could lodge
a petition to the Court to appeal against the Land Disposal in
order to retrieve back the Group’s asset.

In addition, the Company was also informed by the subsidiary
which is operating the Electric Vehicle Business in PRC that
the bank accounts under the Electric Vehicle Business’s
subsidiaries have been restricted for any withdrawal which is
in connection with the investigation by the Ministry of Public
Security of the PRC regarding the resigned executive director,
Mr. Zhang Genjiang. The Company would also seek legal
advice from the PRC lawyer in order to enable the Company
to take any appropriate action including but not limited to
uplifting the restriction. The Company are given to understand
that the withdrawal restrictions of such bank accounts would
last for and up to 8 February 2021 subject to further extension
taken out by the Ministry of Public Security of the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the PRC lawyer is still working in
progress on the above mentioned events, details were set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 19 February 2020, 17
August 2020 and 7 September 2020.

R2020F7H A AR EE—REFEH
KEEHAEEBANNBARTOER
Ao RBAT R E B 0 520206
FHZH B AR A — 88 £ AR & BT
Wm<SERHE(BLTHEE] - &£
EREBRT  NRAFHE &I A B I
EHARFER LY EWRBTMAIE
X At AR A 8% L iR E A
BR—EAA - At A"ARARIE LA
REVAETHR TP REMETAS -
WEFBBETRIEETS  SRIESP
EEMNEDS  UWKEZLTHEER
BIrEVYRBRAZHEBZWE AT
MEE  UWhAEETE KRR
EREEZ IR ERE LR ARE
REENEE -

AN RRB T EE-—REPELE
EPTEXHHHB BN HE
PREXRBEHBARNRITRLEK
BRI 4 AT 4R 5K - A& R i B2 Fh B A %2 B
HECHERTEFTERTILELEEM -
ARRAITBEBRPERMAERER
NBARREDEETS  BEAT
RABUERS] - RARBED - R
ZRITHR P VIR R & 45 & 2021
F2A8H  WAIEF B AR EHREE
—FEEK -

BEEAREEHH  FRHEEMDEE
BLrllEE  FREANRAAEAH
202052 A19H * 20208 H17H K&
2020F9R7TH Z A& °
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27. MATERIAL EVENTS (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
based on the books and records maintained by the Group.
The directors were informed that a significant portion of such
books and records were maintained in the PRC. However,
access to such books and records was limited because such
books and records were seized by the Public Security of the
PRC since January 2020 and were lost due to the departure
of top management personnel including relevant directors,
legal representatives and finance manager.

The directors considered that the control over the following
subsidiaries had been lost since 2019. The results, assets,
liabilities and cash flows of these subsidiaries were
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements
of the Group since 2019. The major subsidiaries were
deconsolidated as follows:

i) MMNEBKLEBEEARAA

(i) HIBERBESEBLEBRAA

(i) LEBREZELEEEBRAA

(ivy EBREX(EEERAA

The directors considered that the control over the following
subsidiaries had been lost since January 2020. The results,
assets, liabilities and cash flows of these subsidiaries were
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements of
the Group since January 2020. The major subsidiaries were
deconsolidated as follows:

i) MMNEXREBIEFRLQF,;

(i) BWMNEHEBHIEFRAF),;

(i) MMNEFIEHEERBER AT,

(ivy IFEREEIEFRAR,;
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27. EXBE(E)

RAVBBRRDODRBEAEEMERZ
RERCHRE EFRRBAZS
FRERGECERBONPEES -
A BN %SERE &R 8 B2020%F
TAEEHPERLIES - HESEZ
FRBECHZIRSG BRFKRE
MRS REBEAS (BREERES -
ERRRMUBELE) B EMERX -

EERBAEBA2019FREAET i
M@ AaE < ZEdl#E - Fit - 520194
B-ZEMNBRAAICERE EE B
BERESREBVEFREARRASH
REMB®RE BBARZEZEWES
NI (N

i) MMESELEEEERQA

iy WMIBBEELBELLERAA
iy EHEREZEKLEETEBRAR

vy, EBREBEXLEBEERQA
EERARNEBH2020F1AHLELET
MM B AR 2SI - Bt 52020
F1AE - ZEMBARIZEE  BE -
BERBRERENESEEARRAE
BREMEHRE - BUBAKR Z EZHK
BRARAMT :

() WMNEXEBSEFRAR :
iy HMEHREBIEBRAF:
(iy WMNEFTEHERBERAA

(v TEERTEHAEARAF:



27. MATERIAL EVENTS (Continued) 27.

28.

29.

V) EERRASEHERBARAT;

(vi)  Ecological Green Transportation Limited (incorporated in
United Kingdom);

(vi) Ecological Green Transportation Limited (incorporated in
Hong Kong);

(viii) China Energy and Chemical Investment Limited;
(ix) Hong Kong Trustful Energy and Chemical Limited;

(x)  Ultimate Growth Investments Limited;

(xi)  Great Fortune Enterprise Company Limited; and

(xii) Gulf Energy (China) Limited.

CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 28.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities

EXBE(#E)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(xi)

(xii)

BEEEEAEHERBERAR:

Ecological Green Transportation
Limited (R B IZ)

FBEBRAR(REEBKL) ;

B2 AR TR EBRAT
BB 2ERBIEIARAR:

Ultimate Growth Investments
Limited :

MBEXBRAR: R

BEER(FE)ARAQT -

METHELENEEET

TRIIFNFARNEERELZDHELD

arising from financing activities during the year. BE#ZH -
Lease
liabilities
HEAR
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and R2019F1 818  2019F12 A31H &

1 January 2020 2020%F1H1H —
Changes in cash flows HeEmEEH 45
Non-cash changes FREEH
— interest charged — BEHBRFE (4)
At 31 December 2020 7 2020%F12H31H 41
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 29. MIBEHmKRZEHM

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 12 May 2021.

WE LA P ERERER2021F5812H
EERed & NRIRETZ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

& Z 2020412 431 H 1 FEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194F 20184 20174 20164F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FAE T FAE T FAE T FAE T
(restated)
(&g at)
Results E¥
Revenue A - 118,039 215,696 525,269 303,268
(Loss)/profit before B BT 15 B4 A
income tax (& 18), i F (599,003) (102,704) 20,596 139,811 39,080
Income tax expense FriS B F 2 (1,599) (1,885) (6,960) (40,986) (14,819)
(Loss)/profit for the year from 7 B #5 48 (& & %
continuing operations BZEA
(E518), & F (600,602)  (104,589) 13,636 98,825 24,261
(Loss)/profit for the year from 3 B B #2 IF 4§
discontinued operation BEBIZFA
(E18), % F - — (4,355) (7,143) —
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)
gl (600,602)  (104,589) 9,281 91,682 24,261
(Loss)/profit for the year FREAE (B
attributable to: 18),/ % F
Owners of the Company NARBEAA  (600,602) (104,377) 2,960 77,222 10,328
Non-controlling interests EIZERER - (212) 6,321 14,460 13,933
(600,602)  (104,589) 9,281 91,682 24,261
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets mEE 128 648,325 722,126 905,493 402,797
Total liabilities FEN=R (15,790) (78,279) (73,496)  (252,811)  (144,799)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8B BE
FE (15,662) 575,052 648,630 652,682 257,998
Equity attributable to: FEAL A
Owners of the Company RRAREEB A (15,662) 575,264 637,726 603,549 226,312
Non-controlling interests IR ER — (212) 10,904 49,133 31,686
Total (deficit)/equity (AL =
B (15,662) 575,052 648,630 652,682 257,998
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